
Planning Board 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
July 17, 2023, 6:30 p.m. 

1. Call to Order

2. Introduction of newly appointed Planning Board member Mr. Colin Cannell

3. Planning Board Member Elections

4. Approval of June 12, 2023, Meeting Minutes

5. City Council Actions Update

6. Request to rezone a +/- 15,246 square foot parcel located at 600 E. Brown Street (GPIN
9825342675), from R-12 to B-3 (CD) by Terry Hedgspeth.

7. Request to rezone six (6) properties (GPINs 9824020553, 9814921385, 9814920726,
9814824291, 9814727217, & 9814823848), totaling +/- 60.2 acres and located with
frontages on Mebane Oaks Road, Broadwood Acres Road, and Longleaf Pine Place, from
R-20 and B-2 to R-8 (CD) to allow for a Planned Unit Development featuring 96 single-
family residences and 320 apartments by Mebane Housing, LLC and Evolve Mebane Oaks,
LLC.

8. New Business

9. Adjournment



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

June 12, 2023, 6:30 p.m. 

 
The Planning Board meeting was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building located at 106 E. 
Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 and livestreamed via YouTube. The video can be accessed 
through the following link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=UvGvPlvx_RM.  
 

Members Present:   Members Absent: 
Edward Tulauskas, Chair   Kurt Pearson 
Judy Taylor, Vice Chair  Jason VanBuren 
William Chapman  Susan Semonite 
Keith Hoover   
Gale Pettiford   
David Scott   

 
City Staff Present:   
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 
Briana Perkins, City Planner 
Chad Cross, IT Specialist 
 
1. Call to Order 

At 6:30 p.m. Chair Tulauskas called the meeting to order. 
 
2. Approval of May 8, 2023, Meeting Minutes 

Gale Pettiford made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. Judy Taylor seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously. 

 
3. City Council Actions Update 

Ashley Ownbey informed the Board that the City Council had approved the rezoning and special use 
requests by 3S Investments, LLC. With their approval of the special use request, the City Council 
included the condition the applicant provide sidewalk along a portion of South Third Street. 
 
Additionally, Ashley Ownbey reported the City Council had approved Phase 2 amendments to the 
Mebane Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). She reviewed the changes that occurred between 
the Planning Board’s recommendation and City Council’s approval. Ashley Ownbey also reported on 
appointments to the Mebane Planning Board. The City Council reappointed Susan Semonite and 
William Chapman to the Board and appointed a new member Colin Cannell who will begin serving in 
July. 
 

4. Request to rezone the +/- 12,632 square foot parcel located on St. Lukes Church Rd. (GPIN 
9815358449), from R-12 and HM to R-12 by GD Adams, LLC. 
GD Adams, LLC is requesting approval to rezone a +/- 12,632 square foot lot on St. Lukes Church 
Road from R-12, Residential District and HM, Heavy Manufacturing to R-12. The property is within 
the City of Mebane’s ETJ in Alamance County and the property would be served by Orange-
Alamance Water and a septic system. The surrounding area includes vacant lots, residential homes, 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=UvGvPlvx_RM


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

June 12, 2023, 6:30 p.m. 

 
and a church. The property is located in the Secondary Growth Strategy Area as identified in 
Mebane By Design, the City’s Comprehensive Land Development Plan. 
 
The site-specific plan and staff report are provided in the meeting agenda packet available here. 
 
Briana Perkins provided a more detailed overview and PowerPoint presenta�on of the request. 
 
Jerry Adams, owner and applicant of the general rezoning request, informed the Board that St. Lukes 
Church Road is a dirt road and everything around the parcel is residen�al. He stated that he is 
planning to develop the property with a two-bedroom, single-family home with an atached garage 
that would be ADA accessible. He said that the sep�c system had already been approved for the 
property and a new home will be connected to Orange-Alamance Water. 
 
David Scot asked Mr. Adams if he was planning to build a spec house. Jerry Adams replied that he is 
building a spec house. He said that his homes are well-built, and everything is high-end. 

David Scott made a motion to approve the R-12 zoning request from GD Adams, LLC as follows: 
Motion to approve the R-12 zoning as presented. 
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane by Design. The request: 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is generally residential 
in nature (Mebane CLP, p.66). 

 
William Chapman seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
5. New Business 

Ashley Ownbey informed the Board that City offices are closed on June 19 and July 4 for holidays. 
She stated that due to the July holiday, the City Council meeting will be held on July 10 and the 
Planning Board meeting is scheduled for July 17. 

 
6. Adjournment 

Chairman Tulauskas adjourned the meeting at approximately 6:41 p.m. 
  

https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-june-12-2023/#/tab-agenda-packet


 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
RZ 23-04 
600 E Brown St – Conditional 
Rezoning 

Presenter 
Briana Perkins, City Planner 

Applicant 
Terry Hedgspeth 
609 Terry Rd. 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

 

 

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
600 E Brown St 

Orange County  

GPIN: 9825342675 

Proposed Zoning 
B-3 (CD) 

Current Zoning 
R-12  

Size 
 +/- 15,246 sq. ft. 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12 and R-20 

Surrounding Land 
Uses 
Residential, Church 

Utilities 
Available 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
Yes 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

 

Summary 
Terry Hedgspeth is requesting to conditionally rezone the +/- 15,246 square foot parcel located at 600 E. 
Brown Street (Orange County GPIN 9825342675), from R-12 to B-3 (CD) to operate a retail business in the 
existing structure. The property is located within the Mebane City Limits in Orange County. The current 
structure has a storefront and has historically existed as a neighborhood retail use. The surrounding zoning 
in the area includes R-12, Residential District and R-20, Residential District. Surrounding land uses include 
single-family residential and a church. The applicant is proposing the following conditions to maintain 
harmony with the residential nature of the neighborhood: 

• The survey of existing conditions is to serve as a site-specific plan. Construction of additional 
structures or expansion of existing structures is not allowed without amendment to the conditions 
of the zoning district. 

• Provision of three striped parking stalls, with one stall dedicated as an ADA space. The Mebane 
Unified Development Ordinance requires a minimum of five parking stalls and one bicycle rack for 
any nonresidential use. 

• Any expansion of the existing driveway and/or parking area requires review by the Mebane 
Technical Review Committee (TRC). The property is in the General Watershed Area Overlay District 
and built-upon area restrictions apply.  

• The removal of any existing landscaping requires review by City staff. 
• The following uses will not be allowed in the zoning district: 

o Billiard Parlor, Pool Hall 
o Civic, Social and Fraternal Clubs and Lodges 
o Indoor Recreation 
o Country Club with Golf Course 
o School for the Arts 
o Fortune Tellers, Astrologers 
o Golf Course, Miniature 
o Health Club or Gym 
o Private Club or Recreational Facility, Outdoor 
o Public Park 
o Sports and Recreation Club, Indoor 
o Swim and Tennis Club 
o Advertising, Outdoor Services 
o Laundromat, Coin-Operated 
o Laundry or Dry Cleaning, Retail Facility 
o Bar, Night Club, Tavern, Brewpub 
o Restaurant (drive-in or take out window only) 
o Restaurant (with drive-through) 

The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the request one time and the applicant has addressed 
comments. 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

Financial Impact 
The applicant will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the B-3 (CD) zoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is residential and commercia 

(Mebane CLP, p. 66). 
 

OR 
 
3. Motion to deny the B-3 (CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 

Attachments 
1. Preliminary Presentation Slides 
2. Zoning Amendment Application 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Site Plan 
5. Planning Project Report 



Conditional Rezoning Request: R-12 to B-3 CD by Terry Hedgspeth



600 E Brown St.
Conditional Rezoning Request



600 E Brown St
Conditional Rezoning Request



600 E Brown St
Conditional Rezoning



600 E Brown St.
Conditional Rezoning Request



600 E Brown St
Conditional Zoning Request





Orange County

July 12, 2023

0 0.02 0.040.01 mi

0 0.03 0.060.015 km

1:1,200

 
 

9825342675PIN:
HEDGSPETH TERRY MONIQUEOWNER 1:
 

290 THOMPSON HEIGHTS P4/56 & P126/113LEGAL DESC:

6799/762DEED REF:
 

BLDG_VALUE:
$17,500LAND VALUE:

$0USE VALUE:
$21,000TOTAL VALUE:

0.35 ASIZE: BUILDING COUNT:

$3,500
OWNER 2:

ADDRESS 1:
ADDRESS 2:

609 TERRY RD
 

CITY: HILLSBOROUGH
STATE, ZIP: NC 27278

RATECODE: 24

DATE SOLD: 10/27/2022
BLDG SQFT:  
YEAR BUILT:  TAX STAMPS: 60

TOWNSHIP CHEEKS

This map contains parcels prepared for the inventory of real property within Orange County, and is compiled from recorded deed, plats, and other public records and data. 
 Users of this map are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the information contained on this map.  

The county and its mapping companies assume no legal responsibility for the information on this map.







L A N D   S U R V E Y

RELIANT

P.L.L.C.  P-1735

HEDGSPETH BOUNDARY
SURVEYDONALD B ABELE                       LICENSED SURVEYOR

1320 HAWTHORNE LANE                   BURLINGTON, NC 27215

336-447-8399

1

1

4' Chainlink Fence

House

Shed

ConcreteDriveway(broken)

A
L

A
M

A
N

C
E

 
 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y

O
R

A
N

G
E

 
 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y

0.35 Acres

VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Certificate of Purpose of Plat I, Donald B. Abele, Professional Land Surveyor No. L-4482, certify to one or more of the following as indicated thus, _ or X: ___a. 	That the survey creates a subdivision of land within the area of a county or municipality That the survey creates a subdivision of land within the area of a county or municipality that has an ordinance that regulates parcels of land; ___b.	That the survey is located in a portion of a county or municipality that is unregulated as That the survey is located in a portion of a county or municipality that is unregulated as to an ordinance that regulates parcels of land; ___c.	Any one of the following: Any one of the following:    		1. That the survey is of an existing parcel or parcels of land and does not create a new 1. That the survey is of an existing parcel or parcels of land and does not create a new street or change an existing street; 2. That the survey is of an existing building or other structure, or natural feature, such as a watercourse; 3. That the survey is a control survey. ___d.	That the survey is of another category, such as the recombination of existing parcels, a That the survey is of another category, such as the recombination of existing parcels, a court-ordered survey, or other exception to the definition of subdivision; ___e.	That the information available to the surveyor is such that the surveyor is unable to make That the information available to the surveyor is such that the surveyor is unable to make a determination to the best of the surveyor's professional ability as to provisions contained  in (a) through (d) above. _________________________________________________    _____________ Professional Land Surveyor L-4482                                    Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, DONALD B ABELE, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY PERFORMED UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN BOOK 6799 PAGE 762); THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 56; THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION OR POSITIONAL ACCURACY AS CALCULATED IS 10,000; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER, AND SEAL, THIS ______ DAY OF __________________, A.D., 2023. _____________________________________________________ PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, DONALD B ABELE, LICENSE NO. PLS L-4482

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTSMAN:          KLK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DATE(S):

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
RLS PROJECT No. 4648

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIP-FOUND IRON PIN/PIPE SIP-SET IRON PIN CC		CONTROL CORNER CONTROL CORNER GPIN 	GRID PARCEL ID NUMBER GRID PARCEL ID NUMBER R/W		RIGHT OF WAY RIGHT OF WAY EOA		EDGE OF ASPHALT EDGE OF ASPHALT CO		CLEAN OUT CLEAN OUT WM		WATER METER WATER METER MH		MAN HOLE MAN HOLE CB		CABLE BOX CABLE BOX POWER POLE MEASURED PROPERTY LINE ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE RIGHT OF WAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRY MONIQUE HEDGSPETH

AutoCAD SHX Text
at 600 EAST BROWN STREET MEBANE, NC 27302 in the CHEEKS TOWNSHIP of ORANGE COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quality Service. On Time.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY SURVEY of the PROPERTY of

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD CERTIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LOCATED IN FLOOD ZONE "X" - AREA OF MINIMAL FLOOD HAZARD  (FEMA PANEL 3710982500L EFFECTIVE 11/17/2017)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
R-12 RESIDENTIAL CITY OF MEBANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT		= 30' = 30' SIDE     	= 10' = 10' REAR		= 25'= 25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN FOR: TERRY HEDGSPETH 804-901-1890

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED: 05/11/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN: 05/16/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB 4 PG 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1) THIS SURVEY HAS BEEN PREPARED WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE REPORT AND DOES NOT THEREFORE NECESSARILY INDICATE ALL ENCUMBRANCES ON THE PROPERTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAIRE C RIZZO GPIN: 9825343673 DB 3759 PG 96 PB 4 PG 56 (LOT 289)

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" FIP (LEANING) NAIL SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" FIP (LEANING) NAIL SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" FIP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chimney

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chimney

AutoCAD SHX Text
Planter

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
Old Foundation

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EOA

AutoCAD SHX Text
EOA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Culvert

AutoCAD SHX Text
Porch

AutoCAD SHX Text
S75° 29' 02"E   101.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3° 00' 00"W      145.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87° 26' 10"W     99.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87° 26' 10"W  99.36'(TIE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3° 00' 00"E      166.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3° 00' 00"W 24.33'(TIE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cracked Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWN STREET (60' R/W PER  PB 4 PG 56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER OF RECORD: : TERRY MONIQUE HEDGSPETH GPIN: 9825342675 DB 6799 PG 762 PB 4 PG 56 (LOT 290)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOGAN BRACKETT & HENRY CALEB TABOR GPIN: 9825343512 DB 6767 PG 1467 PB 4 PG 56 (LOTS 291/292)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDDIE C SHOE JR & BILLIE R SHOE GPIN: 9825342837 Parcel ID: 168891 DB 1324 PG 280 PB 1 PG 56 (LOT 237) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
9TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
10TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE    CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALAMANCE    CO



 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 07/11/2023 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 23-04 
PROJECT NAME 600 East Brown Street – Conditional Rezoning 

APPLICANT 
Terry Hedgspeth 
609 Terry Road 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 6 
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION .................................................................. PAGE 6 



 

PAGE 2 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE R-12, Residential 
REQUESTED ACTION B-3 (CD) – Neighborhood Business, Conditional Zoning District 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Vacant Storefront 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 15,246 square feet 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

Terry Hedgspeth 
609 Terry Road 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 
GPIN: 9825342675 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Request to rezone a +/- 15,246 square foot parcel located at 600 E. Brown Street 
(GPIN 9825342675), from R-12 (Residential District) to B-3 (CD) (Neighborhood 
Business, Conditional District) by Terry Hedgspeth. 

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS Surrounding properties are zoned R-12, Residential District.  
SITE HISTORY Historically, the structure was used as a bait and tackle store.  

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO 

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The structure on the property currently has a storefront and was historically used for 
a small retail business.  The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
historic use of the property. The conditions of the zoning district will limit the impact 
of a neighborhood business on surrounding residential uses. 



 

PAGE 3 

 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant Storefront 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The property owner is requesting to conditionally rezone the +/- 15,246 
square foot parcel located at 600 E. Brown Street (Orange County GPIN 
9825342675), from R-12 to B-3 (CD) to operate a small retail business in the 
existing structure.  

PROPOSED ZONING B-3 (CD) Neighborhood Business, Conditional Zoning 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 15,246 square feet 
AREA LAND USE The surrounding uses are primarily single-family residential. 
ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS No improvements are proposed. 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES NO 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED 
CONDITIONS 
 

1) No new structures or expansions to existing structures is allowed. 
2) The applicant will provide three striped parking stalls, with one stall 

dedicated to ADA parking.  
3) Any expansion of the existing driveway and/or parking area requires 

review by the Mebane Technical Review Committee (TRC). As the 
property is in a protected watershed, built-upon area restrictions apply. 

4) The removal of any existing landscaping requires review by City staff. 
5) As described in the rezoning application, certain uses would be 

prohibited in the zoning district. 

  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-4 Secondary 
 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS  

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

  

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 5 

 
 



 

PAGE 6 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 
PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS The structure is already connected to City water and sewer.  
UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT N/A  
MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project.  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO   N/A 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO   N/A 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The site includes an existing driveway connection on E. Brown 
Street (SR 1306), which is a two-lane, local road maintained by 
the NCDOT. In 2021, NCDOT reported an annual average daily 
traffic count of 1,500 vehicles on the section of E. Brown Street 
between Ninth Street and Supper Club Road. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

N/A 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO  

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

N/A 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE BY 
DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development at 600 E. Brown Street is consistent 
with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The rezoning will be more 
appropriate for a property historically used for nonresidential 
purposes and is proposed with conditions to limit the impacts to 
residential neighbors.  

 



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
RZ 23-05 
Conditional Rezoning – Evolve at 
Mebane Oaks 

Presenter 
Rachel Gaffney, City Planner 

Applicant 
Mebane Housing, LLC / Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC 
2918-A / 4918-A Martinsville Road 
Greensboro, NC 27408 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 
 
 

Property 
1413 Mebane Oaks Rd, 
1326 Broadwood Acres Rd, 
1332 Broadwood Acres Rd, 
1333 Broadwood Acres Rd, 
1345 Broadwood Acres Rd, 
0 Broadwood Acres Rd 

Alamance County GPINs: 
9824020553, 9814921385, 
9814920726, 9814824291, 
9814727217, 9814823848 

Proposed Zoning 
R-8 (CD) 

Current Zoning 
R-20 & B-2 

Size 
 +/-60.241 acres  

Surrounding Zoning 
B-2 (CD), B-2, R-20, R-12, R-
8, R-8(CD) 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Commercial, Residential 

Utilities 
Available 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
No 

City Limits 
No 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Application Brief 
See Planning Project Report for more details. 

Recommendations 

Technical Review Committee: 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan six 
times and the applicant has revised the plan to reflect the comments.  

Planning Staff: 
The proposed development “Evolve at Mebane Oaks” is consistent 
with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan.  

Zoning & Land Use Report 

Jurisdiction: Mebane Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 

Proposed Use By-Right (Yes/No): No 

Type of Rezoning Request: Conditional 

Special Use Request (Yes/No): No 

Consistency with Mebane By Design (Yes/No):  Yes 

Utilities Report 

Available Utilities (Yes/No): Yes 

Adequate Stormwater Control (Yes/No): Yes 

Innovative Stormwater Control (Yes/No): No 

Consistency with Long-Range Utility Plan (Yes/No): Yes 

Transportation Report 

Traffic Impact Analysis Required (Yes/No): Yes 

Multi-Modal Improvements (Yes/No): Yes 

Consistency with Bike/Ped Transportation Plan (Yes/No):  Yes 

 

 

 

 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

Summary 
Mebane Housing, LLC and Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC are requesting approval to conditionally rezone six (6) 
properties (GPINs 9824020553, 9814921385, 9814920726, 9814824291, 9814727217, & 9814823848), 
totaling +/- 60.241 acres and located with frontages on Mebane Oaks Road, Broadwood Acres Road, and 
Longleaf Pine Place from R-20 and B-2 to R-8 (CD) to allow for a Planned Unit Development featuring 96 
single-family residences and 320 apartments by Mebane Housing, LLC and Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC. The 
properties are located in Alamance County in the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). The applicant must 
petition for annexation before connecting to City water and sewer. 

The site-specific plan includes the following onsite amenities and dedications: 

• A 5’ wide sidewalk will be constructed on Mebane Oaks Road. The applicant has also indicated that 
a connection to the Garrett Crossing shopping plaza will be provided.  

• All internal roads within the development will include 5’ wide sidewalks. Sidewalk is proposed on 
both sides of Broadwood Acres Road and on one side of all other roads. Traffic calming is provided 
on Broadwood Acres Road with grassed medians and a traffic circle. 

• The development will include two community playgrounds, two private dog parks, a grilling 
pavilion, and a community pool and club house. Charging spaces for electric vehicles will be 
provided at the clubhouse. 

• The applicant has also committed to dedicating a +/- 7.43-acre lot to the City for future 
development, including, but not limited to, a new police station. 

 The following conditions are proposed with the conditional rezoning request:  

Proposed Conditions of Zoning District Mebane UDO Requirements 

The applicant has requested a maximum building 
height of 60 feet for the apartment buildings as a 
condition of the zone district. 

Section 4-2.A of the Mebane UDO states that the 
maximum building height for multi-family dwellings 
in the R-8 Zone District is 50 feet. 

The applicant has proposed to provide 1.77 acres 
of private recreation and 7.08 acres of open 
space. As a condition of the zone district, they 
have requested that the City accept the 
dedication of a +/- 7.43 acre lot for future 
development in lieu of the required public 
recreation space and remaining private recreation 
and open space requirements. 

Pursuant to Section 6-8 of the Mebane UDO, public 
recreation must be provided at a rate of 1,250 
square feet per dwelling unit. The multi-family 
dwelling area must include private recreation space 
at a rate of 750 square feet per dwelling unit and 
private open space at a rate of 1,000 square feet per 
dwelling unit. This development is required to 
provide 11.83 acres of public recreation space, 
5.51 acres of private recreation space, and 7.34 
acres of open space. 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 4 

As a condition of the approval of the apartments, 
buildings 1 and 2 sewer flow will be allocated in 
year 2024 and buildings 3 and 4 in 2025. 

While this exceeds the requirements of the 
Accumulated Paper Flow Policy, staff is agreeable 
to this developer request due to the number of 
units in each building not fitting the policy and the 
timing at which the developer intends to 
construct these buildings (earlier tributary flow at 
a lesser amount than accumulated permitted 
paper flow at a higher amount over several years). 

 

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was required for the proposed development. Based on the TIA, the developer 
is responsible for the following improvements: 

• Coordinate with NCDOT to develop a coordination and timing plan for the signals along Mebane 
Oaks Road. 

• Install a traffic signal at the site access on Mebane Oaks Road. 
• Provide an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with a minimum 100 feet of full width storage 

with appropriate transitions. 
• Provide an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with a minimum of 100 feet of storage with 

appropriate deceleration taper. 
• Construct the Site Access 1 (from Mebane Oaks Road) with one ingress lane and two egress lanes 

striped as one left-turn lane with 180’ of full width storage and one right-turn lane as shown on 
the site plan. 

• Provide an internal protected system (IPS) of 580’ as shown on the site plan to ensure acceptable 
operations with additional traffic growth and potential addition of the 4th leg of the intersection as 
shown on the adopted Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan. 

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the improvements at his own expense. 

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-8(CD) zoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is generally residential in nature 

(Mebane CLP, p. 66). 
 

 Allows for the integration of a community facility, consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.4 
(p. 17 & 83) 

 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 5 

OR 
 
3. Motion to deny the R-8(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 
 

Attachments 
1. Preliminary Presentation Slides 
2. Zoning Amendment Application 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Site Plan 
5. Planning Project Report  
6. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
7. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
8. Traffic Impact Analysis – click here to download 

a. NCDOT Review of TIA 
b. VHB Review of TIA 

 

https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/d-s68554a80aa0d48848469ccf5e484592f




Evolve at Mebane Oaks
Conditional Rezoning Request



Evolve at Mebane Oaks
Conditional Rezoning Request



Evolve at Mebane Oaks
Conditional Rezoning Request



Evolve at Mebane Oaks
Conditional Rezoning Request



Evolve at Mebane Oaks
Conditional Rezoning Request



Evolve at Mebane Oaks
Conditional Rezoning Request



Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA)
The developer is required to make the following 
improvements:

• Coordinate with NCDOT to develop a coordination and 
timing plan for the signals along Mebane Oaks Road.

• Install a traffic signal at the site access on Mebane Oaks 
Road.

• Provide an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with a 
minimum of 100 feet of full width storage with 
appropriate transitions.

• Provide an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with a 
minimum of 100 feet of storage with appropriate 
deceleration taper.

• Construct the Site Access 1 (from Mebane Oaks Road) 
with one ingress lane and two egress lanes striped as 
one left-turn lane with 180’ of full width storage and 
one right-turn lane as shown on the site plan.

• Provide an internal protected system (IPS) of 580’ as 
shown on the site plan to ensure acceptable operations 
with additional traffic growth and potential addition of 
the 4th leg of the intersection as shown on the adopted 
Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan.





RZ-23-05
Evolve at Mebane Oaks
CITY OF MEBANE PLANNING BOARD
JULY 17, 2023



EXISTING LAND USE PATTERN



ZONING CONTEXT





TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENTS









SINGLE FAMILY ILLUSTRATIVES 









Alamance County GIS
Alamance County GIS Department

Heavy Industrial Development Applicants

APPLIED FOR PERMIT
PERMIT APPROVED

PERMIT RENEWED

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

July 12, 2023

 
 

Owner Name: EVOLVE MEBANE OAKS LLC 

10-23-489824020553GREENSBORO, NC 274082918 A MARTINSVILLE ROAD
GPIN:PID:

DISCLAIM ER:
The datasets and m aps available are not survey grade or a legal
 document .  They are a best approxim ation of what is on the
 ground, but do contain errors.  The data com es f rom  various
 sources nat ionally,  the state of  North Carolina, and here in
 Alam ance County.  Al amance County wi ll not  be held responsible
 for the misuse, misrepresentation,  or m isinterpretat ion of the data or
 maps.   T hese maps and data are a service provi ded for the benefit
 for A lam ance County c it izens.   We constantly st rive to improve the
 qualit y and expand the am ount of data and m aps avail able.

ALAMANCE CO UNT Y shall  assum e no liabili ty  for any errors,
 omi ssions, or inaccuracies i n the inform ation provi ded regardl ess of
 how caused; or any decisi on m ade or acti on taken or not taken by
 user in rel iance upon any i nformat ion or data furnished hereunder.
 The user knowingly wai ves any and all cl aims for dam ages against
 any and all of  the ent iti es com pris ing the Al amance County GIS
 System  that may arise f rom the mapping data. Date: 7/12/2023

0 0.05 0.1 mi

µ









S

S

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

M
EBANE OAKS RD

PUBLIC RIGHT OF W
AY VARIES

SHED

SHED

SHED

CREEK

CREEK

ASPHALT PARKING

CREEK

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

X

X
X

X

630

630

63
0

64
0

63
0 64

0

640

650

650

64
0

640

630

64
0

630

640

650

650

65
0

64
0

63
0

630

620

620

620

608

610

600

600

620

610

600

610

610

620

630

61
0

620

630

630

620

630

620

630

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

620

630

634

634

618

61
8

65
2

64
2

642

626

59
6

596

61
6

616

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

WWWWWWW

SSSSSSSSSSSS

SS
SS

SS
SS

630

E

LP

LP

LP

LP

MB

PP
PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

T

T
T

T

T

T

D

D

D

S

D

S

S

BR
O

AD
W

O
O

D 
AC

RE
S 

RO
AD

60
' P

U
BL

IC
, P

.B
. 5

8 
PG

. 8
2

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

C3
3 OF 11

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 N

O
TE

DA
TE

N
O

.

1 2 3 4 5 6

BEFORE YOU DIG !
CALL 811 N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

IT'S THE LAW !

AL
L                    C

ONSTRUCTION                    MUST                    CONFORM                    TO                    THE UN
DE

RGROUND                   UTILITY                   PROTECTION                  ACT

1 inch =        ft.
( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
0120 120 240

120

48060

EV
O

LV
E 

AT
 M

EB
AN

E 
O

AK
S

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
S 

PL
AN

PR
O

JE
CT

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

:
ST

AT
E:

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A
CO

U
N

TY
: A

LA
M

AN
CE

TO
W

N
SH

IP
: M

EL
VI

LL
E

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
O

W
N

ER
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
:

M
EB

AN
E 

HO
U

SI
N

G,
 L

LC
.

29
18

-A
 M

AR
TI

N
SV

IL
LE

 R
O

AD
GR

EE
N

SB
O

RO
, N

C 
27

40
8

DR
AW

IN
G 

FI
LE

 P
AT

H:
 S

EI
 P

ro
je

ct
s \

50
5-

02
\d

w
g\

M
as

te
r P

la
n 

R-
8.

dw
g

DRAWN BY: SDT
CHECKED BY: ARS
DATE: 10/28/2022
PROJECT NO.:  505-02
REF. NO.:
SCALE: 1"=120'

St
ol

tz
fu

s 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
In

c.
C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s

Ad
en

 R
. S

to
ltz

fu
s,

 P
E 

  C
-3

81
2

ad
en

@
se

ie
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

co
m

33
6-

90
4-

02
07

68
3 

Gr
al

in
 S

tr
ee

t
Ke

rn
er

sv
ill

e,
 N

C 
27

28
4

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
O

W
N

ER
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
:

EV
O

LV
E 

M
EB

AN
E 

O
AK

S,
 L

LC
49

18
-A

 M
AR

TI
N

SV
IL

LE
 R

O
AD

GR
EE

N
SB

O
RO

, N
C 

27
40

8

THESE DRAWINGS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE AND SHALL REMAIN THE
PROPERTY OF THE ENGINEER.  THESE DRAWINGS ARE PROTECTED UNDER
COPYRIGHT LAWS AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN PART OR IN WHOLE
WITHOUT THE SPECIFIC WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE ENGINEER.

   2023 STOLTZFUS ENGINEERING, INC.

EX. WETLANDS

EX. WETLANDS

EX. BUILDING
TO BE REMOVED

EX. BUILDING
TO BE REMOVED

EX. BUILDING
TO BE REMOVED

EX. BUILDING
TO BE REMOVED

EX. CREEK W/ 30'
UNDISTURBED BUFFER
& 20' STREAM BUFFER

EX. BUILDING
TO BE REMOVED

UTILITY POLE

GUY WIRE

DEED BOOKDB
PLAT BOOKPB
PAGEPG
RIGHT-OF-WAYR/W
EDGE OF PAVEMENTE/P
EDGE OF GRAVELE/G
CONCRETECONC

LEGEND

LIGHT POLE

REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPERCP

CURB INLETCIYARD INLET (YI)
FINISH FLOOR ELEVATIONFFE

WOODSLINE (TYP.)

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

GAS LINE

W W WATER LINE

UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL

GROUND LIGHT

GAS VALVE
BASEMENTBSMT
TELEPHONE PEDESTALTPED
TELEPHONE HAND HOLDTHH

X FENCE LINE

DROP INLETDI

G G

OHU

UE

DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE & UTILITY EASEMENTDMUE

WATER VALVE (WV)

STORM MANHOLE (STMH)

WATER METER BOX (WM)

FIRE HYDRANT (HYD)

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE (SSMH)

CLEAN OUT
S S

EX. WETLANDS

VICINITY MAP
1" = 2,000'

OLD HILLSBOROUGH RD

LONG MEADOW DR

JIM LOWE DR

POINT CT

M
EBANE OAKS RD

BRO
ADW

O
O

D ACRES RD

BRUNDAGE

LO
NG

LE
AF

 P
IN

E 
PL

SWEET GUM
WAY

SUGAR TREE DR

YE
LL

O
W

 W
O

O
D 

DR

INTERSTATE 40/85

WILLSON RD

CITY OF
MEBANE

ETJ

CITY OF
MEBANE

CITY OF
MEBANE

CITY OF
MEBANE

CITY OF
MEBANE

ETJ
CITY OF

MEBANE
ETJ

CITY OF
MEBANE

ETJ

SITE

M
EBANE OAKS RD

OLD HILLSBOROUGH RD

OLD HILLSBOROUGH RD

HO
LM

ES
 LA

NE

BRO
CKTO

N
 DR

SYKES RD

GRACE LAN
DIN

G

CAMERON ARROWHEAD BLVD
S. 5TH STREET

AI
RP

OR
T R

OA
D

CITY OF
MEBANE

CITY OF
MEBANE

ETJ

CITY OF
MEBANE

ETJ

CITY OF
MEBANE

CITY OF
MEBANE

CITY OF
MEBANE

GPIN: 9814815715
WOODY JAMES

BRANDON CLEVETTA
PB:56 PG:136

GPIN: 9814816871

RILEY KRISTEN SLOAN

PB:56 PG:136

GPIN: 9814818804

DIXON BRIAN &

 GRETCHEN

PB:56 PG:136

GPIN: 9814819806

CLUKEY ROBERT

 & SUSAN

PB:56 PG:136
GPIN: 9814910818

STEINBACK JEFFREY

& REBECCA

PB:56 PG:136

GPIN
: 9814911911

REES DO
N

ALD &

SHARO
N

 DARLEN
E

PB:56 PG:136

GP
IN

: 9
81

49
13

92
5

CO
W

AR
T 

SH
IR

LE
Y

PB
. 5

6,
 P

G.
 1

36

GP
IN

: 9
81

49
14

93
4

HU
RS

T 
JO

Y 
SU

E
PB

. 5
6,

 P
G.

 1
36

GP
IN

: 9
81

49
15

84
9

BI
GE

LO
W

 LO
RR

IE
 J

PB
. 5

6,
 P

G.
 1

36

GPIN 9814833231

CLIFFORD KEITH ALAN

DB:849 PG:384

PB:13 PG:94

ZONING: R-20

USE: SINGLE-FAMILY

GPIN: 9814731051
CENTER LXXIII, LLC DB 1777, Pg. 944

ZONING: B-2
USE: VACANT

GPIN: 9814736361
DISASH, LLC

DB 3173, Pg. 780 TRACT EIGHT
ZONING: B-2
USE: VACANT

GPIN 9814830048
CENTER LXXIII, LLC
DB 5151, Pg. 246

ZONING: B-2
USE: VACANT

PARCEL 170982
GPIN 981410385

BART ALAN McPHERSON &
DAWN McPHERSON DB 2858, Pg. 383

ZONING: R-20
USE: VACANT

PARCEL 167490
GPIN 9824024349

AGAPE BAPTIST CHURCH
DB 433, Pg. 844

P.B.4 PG. 56
ZONING: R-20
USE: EXEMPT

GPIN 9814838018
DON F. GREESON & BETTY R. GREESON

DB 431, Pg. 120
ZONING: R-20

USE: MANUFACTURING

60' PERPETUAL
RIGHT AND EASEMENT

FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES
D.B. 478 PG. 490

PARCEL 167482
GPIN: 9824013830

THE SUMMIT CHURCH
HOMESTEAD HEIGHTS
BAPTIST CHURCH INC

DB 948, Pg. 553
P.B.74 PG.106

ZONING: B-2 CD
USE: VACANTZO

N
IN

G: R-20

U
SE: SIN

GLE-FAM
ILY

ZO
N

IN
G:

 R
-2

0
U

SE
: S

IN
GL

E-
FA

M
IL

Y

ZO
N

IN
G:

 R
-2

0
US

E:
 S

IN
GL

E-
FA

M
IL

Y

ZO
NI

NG
: R

-2
0

US
E:

 S
IN

GL
E-

FA
M

ILYZO
N

IN
G: R-20

USE: SIN
GLE-FAM

ILY

ZONING: R-20

USE: SF
ZONING: R-20

USE: SF
ZONING: R-20

USE: SF

ZONING: R-20
USE: SINGLE-FAMILY

GPIN
: 9814912923

PARHAM
 JO

HN
 A

&
 CIN

DY R
PB. 56, PG. 136

ZONING: R-20

USE: SF

CI
TY

 O
F 

M
EB

AN
E 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
1/

25
/2

3

GPIN 9824020553
EVOLVE MEBANE OAKS LLC

DB 4265, Pg. 860
P.B. 70, Pg. 349

ZONING: B-2
USE: VACANT COMMERCIAL

GPIN 9814921385
MEBANE HOUSING, LLC

DB 4326, Pg. 190
P.B. 58, Pg. 82
ZONING: R-20

USE:SINGLE FAMILY

GPIN 9814920726
MEBANE HOUSING, LLC

DB 4326, Pg. 190
P.B. 58, Pg. 82
ZONING: R-20

USE:SINGLE FAMILY

GPIN 9814824291
MEBANE HOUSING, LLC

DB 4326, Pg. 184
P.B. 49, Pg. 183
ZONING: R-20

USE:VACANT LAND

GPIN 9814823848
MEBANE HOUSING, LLC

DB 4326, Pg. 184
ZONING: R-20

USE:SINGLE FAMILY

GPIN 9814727217
MEBANE HOUSING, LLC

DB 4326, Pg. 181
ZONING: R-20

USE:SINGLE FAMILY

YELLOW
WOOD DR.

LONGLEAF
PINE PLACE

SW
EE

T 
GU

M
 W

AY

CITY OF MEBANE CORP LIMITS

IN

OUT

CITY OF MEBANE CORP LIMITS

IN

OUT

CITY O
F M

EBAN
E CO

RP LIM
ITS

IN O
U

T

CI
TY

 O
F 

M
EB

AN
E 

CO
RP

 LI
M

IT
S

IN

OU
T

CITY OF MEBANE CORP LIMITS

IN

OUT

CITY OF MEBANE CORP LIMITS IN

OUT

CITY OF MEBANE CORP LIMITS
IN

OUT

CITY OF MEBANE CORP LIMITS

IN

OUT

CITY OF MEBANE

CORP LIMITS IN
OUT

CITY OF MEBANE

CORP LIMITS

IN

OUT

AR
BO

R 
CR

EE
K 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
H 

IV
P.

B.
 7

7,
 P

G.
 3

09
ZO

N
ED

: R
-1

2

AR
BO

R 
CR

EE
K 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
H 

III
P.

B.
 7

7,
 P

G.
 8

1
ZO

N
ED

: R
-1

2

MANORFIELD PH V
P.B. 76, PG. 491
ZONED: R-8 (CD)

CI
TY

 O
F 

M
EB

AN
E 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
03

/2
8/

23

132

133

134

135

136

OPEN SPACE

131

130

128

25
24 23 22

21

LONGMEADOW DRIVE

PARCEL 164679
GPIN 9814934523

WAL MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS
DB 2146, Pg. 57
PB. 69 PG.116

ZONING: B-2 CD
USE: DISCOUNT STORE

PARCEL 167499
GPIN 9824037076

CHAT ENTERPRISES, LLC.
DB 3838, Pg. 420

P.B. 4 PG. 56
ZONING: B-2 CD

USE: RETAIL

PARCEL 167503
GPIN 9824039072

JEFFREY & MARSHA MEBANE
DB 561, Pg. 90
ZONING: R-20

USE: SINGLE-FAMILY

PARCEL 167496
GPIN 9824033177

HUTTON MEBANE NC ST, LLC
DB 4250, Pg. 772
P.B. 69 PG. 116
ZONING: B-2 CD
USE: CAR WASH

PARCEL 167594
GPIN 9824121970
ROBERT MEBANE
DB 304, Pg. 588
ZONING: R-20

USE: SINGLE-FAMILY

PARCEL 164682
GPIN 9814938172

NC MEBANE GARRETT VRX, LLC.
DB 3820, Pg. 608

PB. 69 PG.116
ZONING: B-2 CD

USE: RETAIL

CI
TY

 O
F 

M
EB

AN
E 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
06

/0
9/

23

APPROX. LOCATION
EX. SEWER

APPROX. LOCATION
EX. SEWER

07/07/2023

CI
TY

 O
F 

M
EB

AN
E 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
06

/2
8/

23

CI
TY

 O
F 

M
EB

AN
E 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
07

/0
7/

23

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B. 58, PG. 82



















 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 07/10/2023 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 23-05 
PROJECT NAME Evolve at Mebane Oaks  

APPLICANT 
Mebane Housing, LLC / Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC 
2918-A / 4918-A Martinsville Road 
Greensboro, NC 27408 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 7 
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION .................................................................. PAGE 9



 

PAGE 2 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE R-20, Residential and B-2, General Business 
REQUESTED ACTION R-8 (CD) (Residential Conditional District) 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Single-Family Residential and Vacant Land 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 60.241 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

Mebane Housing, LLC / Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC 
2918-A / 4918-A Martinsville Road 
Greensboro, NC 27408 
GPINs: 9824020553, 9814921385, 9814920726, 9814824291, 9814727217, & 
9814823848 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Request to rezone six (6) properties (GPINs 9824020553, 9814921385, 9814920726, 
9814824291, 9814727217, & 9814823848), totaling +/- 60.241 acres and located 
with frontages on Mebane Oaks Road, Broadwood Acres Road, and Longleaf Pine 
Place, from R-20 and B-2 to R-8 (CD) to allow for a Planned Unit Development 
featuring 96 single-family residences and 320 apartments by Mebane Housing, LLC 
and Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC. 

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

The properties to the north are zoned B-2 (CD), B-2, and R-20. The properties to the 
east, across Mebane Oaks Road, are zoned R-20 and R-8. The properties to the south 
are zoned B-2 (CD), R-20, and R-8 (CD). The properties to the west are zoned R-12, R-
8 (CD), and B-2.   

SITE HISTORY 
Five of the lots were previously improved with single-family residences, built 
between 1965 and 1998. The remaining lot has historically been vacant.  

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES?  YES   NO 

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the R-8 (CD) and R-12 zoning to the west of 
the subject property. The proposed development will increase the residential density 
of this area but it will also improve road network connections between developments 
on the north side of Old Hillsborough Road and on the west side of Mebane Oaks 
Road.   



 

PAGE 3 
 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Single-Family Residential and Vacant Land 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting to rezone six (6) properties, totaling +/- 60.241 
acres and located with frontages on Mebane Oaks Road, Broadwood Acres 
Road, and Longleaf Pine Place, from R-20 and B-2 to R-8 (CD) to allow for a 
Planned Unit Development featuring 96 single-family residences and 320 
apartments by Mebane Housing, LLC and Evolve Mebane Oaks, LLC. 

PROPOSED ZONING R-8 (CD) (Residential Conditional District) 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 60.241 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

The subject property is located just south of the Garrett Crossing shopping 
plaza, which includes a Walmart and a number of restaurants, retail stores, 
and services. There is also a retail store east of the property, across 
Mebane Oaks Road. The other surrounding properties are developed with 
single-family residences. The proposed development includes a connection 
to the existing Arbor Creek neighborhood. 

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant will provide onsite amenities for residents, including two 
community playgrounds, two private dog parks, a grilling pavilion, and a 
community pool and club house. The development will also include 
charging spaces for electric vehicles.  
 
A 5’ wide sidewalk will be constructed on Mebane Oaks Road. The applicant 
has also indicated that a connection to the Garrett Crossing shopping plaza 
will be provided. All internal roads within the development will include 5’ 
wide sidewalks. Sidewalk is proposed on both sides of Broadwood Acres 
Road and on one side of all other roads. Traffic calming is provided on 
Broadwood Acres Road with grassed medians and a traffic circle. 
 
The applicant has also committed to dedicating a +/- 7.43 acre lot to the 
City for future development, including, but not limited to, a new police 
station. 
 

CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED 
CONDITIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The applicant has requested as a condition of the zone district that the 
maximum building height of the apartment buildings is 60 feet. The Unified 
Development Ordinance states that the maximum building height for multi-
family dwellings in the R-8 Zone District is 50 feet.  
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance, this 
development is required to provide 11.83 acres of public recreation space, 
5.51 acres of private recreation space, and 7.34 acres of open space. The 
applicant has proposed to provide 1. 77 acres of private recreation and 7.08 
acres of open space. As a condition of the zone district, the applicants have 



 

PAGE 5 

 
 
 
 

requested that the City accept the dedication of a +/- 7.43 acre lot for 
future development in lieu of the required public recreation space and 
remaining private recreation and open space requirements. 
 
As a condition of the approval of the apartments, buildings 1 and 2 sewer 
flow will be allocated in year 2024 and buildings 3 and 4 in 2025. While this 
exceeds the requirements of the Accumulated Paper Flow Policy staff is 
agreeable to this developer request due to the number of units in each 
building not fitting the policy and the timing at which the developer intends 
to construct these buildings (earlier tributary flow at a lesser amount than 
accumulated permitted paper flow at a higher amount over several years). 
 

  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-4 Secondary 
 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

Goal 1.4: Ensure that adequate community facilities are integrated into new 
development to reduce distances to parks, schools, and community 
centers. 

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 6 
 



 

PAGE 7 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the anticipated 
water use for the proposed development is 60,000 gallons per 
day. The permitted wastewater use is 83,500 gallons per day 
with the actual use when tributary is closer to 50,000 gallons 
per day. The development will connect to Mebane’s existing 12-
inch water line on Mebane Oaks Road and extend a new 12-inch 
public water line to the existing networks on Broadwood Acres 
Road to the north and Longleaf Pine Place to the west with 8-
inch public water lines elsewhere in public road rights-of-way. 
Water service to the proposed apartments will be through an 8-
inch metered connection with backflow prevention installed at 
the meter and at each building. The project will also extend a 
12-inch public sewer line from the Summit Church property 
through the site ending near the northern property line. 
Additionally, the developer will extend 8-inch public sewer lines 
in new road rights-of-way to serve the proposed single-family 
subdivision and 8-inch private sewer lines to serve the proposed 
apartments. 

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as 
described in AWCK’s Technical Memo. 

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project.  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 
 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The subject property is located on the west side of Mebane 
Oaks Road and the primary entrance to the subdivision will be 
from there. The development will extend Broadwood Acres 
Road to connect with Mebane Oaks Road. It will also include 
roadway connections to the Arbor Creek Subdivision to the west 
and the Garrett Crossing shopping plaza to the north.  
 
This section of Mebane Oaks Road had an average daily traffic 
volume of 26,000 trips in 2021. It has a combined safety score 
of 56. From 2018 to 2022, there were a total of 79 crashes in 



 

PAGE 8 

this section, but none with fatal or severe injuries. North of the 
site, the NCDOT is currently improving Mebane Oaks Road. 
South of the site, the NCDOT has recently installed a traffic 
signal at the intersection of Mebane Oaks and Old Hillsborough. 
 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The developer is required to make the following improvements: 
• Coordinate with NCDOT to develop a coordination and 

timing plan for the signals along Mebane Oaks Road. 
• Install a traffic signal at the site access on Mebane Oaks 

Road. 
• Provide an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with a 

minimum of 100 feet of full width storage with 
appropriate transitions. 

• Provide an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with a 
minimum of 100 feet of storage with appropriate 
deceleration taper. 

• Construct the Site Access 1 (from Mebane Oaks Road) 
with one ingress lane and two egress lanes striped as 
one left-turn lane with 180’ of full width storage and 
one right-turn lane as shown on the site plan. 

• Provide an internal protected system (IPS) of 580’ as 
shown on the site plan to ensure acceptable operations 
with additional traffic growth and potential addition of 
the 4th leg of the intersection as shown on the adopted 
Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan.  

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO 
 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant is required to construct a sidewalk for the length 
of the property on Mebane Oaks Road and sidewalks will be 
provided throughout the development. Bike racks will also be 
provided in accordance with UDO requirements. 

 
 



 

PAGE 9 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE 
BY DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Evolve at Mebane Oaks” is 
consistent with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, 
the Mebane Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The project 
includes an extension of Broadwood Acres Road that is consistent 
with the Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan and it is in harmony 
with surrounding uses. 

 



W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M 

 

July 11, 2023 

 
Mr. Aden Stoltzfus, P.E. 
Stoltzfus Engineering Inc. 
683 Gralin Street 
Kernersville, NC 27284 

Subject: Evolve at Mebane Oaks – Water and Sewer System Layout 

Dear Mr. Stoltzfus: 

Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Evolve at Mebane Oaks and in accordance with the UDO, this memo 
indicates that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable meeting City 
standards based on the following:   
 
A. Water system – The developer proposes to connect to Mebane’s existing 12-inch water line on Mebane Oaks 

Road and extending a new 12-inch public water line to existing Broadwood Acres Road to the north and 
Longleaf Pine Place to the west with 8-inch public water lines elsewhere in public road rights-of-way. Water 
service to the proposed apartments will be through an 8-inch metered connection with backflow prevention 
installed at the meter and at each building. The anticipated water use is approximately 60,000 gallons per 
day. The City has adequate water capacity available to meet the project’s domestic demand and fire flow 
requirements. 
 

B. Sanitary Sewer system – The developer proposes to extend a 12-inch public sewer line from the Summit 
Church property through the site ending near the northern property line (to allow for further future extension 
by the City when it chooses to eliminate the public Wal-Mart sewer pump station). Additionally, the developer 
will extend 8-inch public sewer lines in new road rights-of-way to serve the proposed single family lot 
subdivision and 8-inch private sewer lines to serve the proposed apartments. Permitted wastewater flows are 
approximately 83,500 gallons per day with actual use when tributary closer to 50,000 gpd). The City has 
adequate wastewater capacity available at the downstream Southeast Regional Pump Station, Arbor Creek 
Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet this demand. 

 

As a condition of the approval of the apartments, buildings 1 and 2 sewer flow will be allocated in year 2024 and 
buildings 3 and 4 in 2025. While this exceeds the requirements of the Accumulated Paper Flow Policy staff is 
agreeable to this developer request due to the number of units in each building not fitting the policy and the 
timing at which the developer intends to construct these buildings (earlier tributary flow at a lesser amount than 
accumulated permitted paper flow at a higher amount over several years). 
   
If there are any questions, please let me know. 
Sincerely, 

 
Franz K. Holt, P.E. City Engineer 
CC: Ashley Ownbey, Dev. Director and Kyle Smith, Utilities Director 

 
CITY OF MEBANE       106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302      919 563 5901          fholt@cityofmebane.com 

http://www/
mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com


  

CITY OF MEBANE  106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302   (919) 563 5901   fholt@cityofmebane.com  

WWW . C I T Y OF M E B A N E . COM  

Technical Memorandum              

Date: July 11, 2023 

To: Ashley Ownbey, Development Director  

From: Franz Holt, P.E.  

Subject: Evolve at Mebane Oaks – City Engineering Department review  

  

City Engineering has reviewed Site Plans submitted for Evolve at Mebane Oaks dated July 7, 2023, prepared by 

Aden Stoltzfus, P.E. with Stoltzfus Engineering Inc. Our technical review comments are as follows: 

A. General Summary 

1. The 60.241-acre site is proposed to be developed as single-family (96 lots), multifamily apartments 

(320), and includes a dedication of land to the City of Mebane for future use. 

2. On-site stormwater controls are proposed to meet standard treatment requirements and exceed 

standard storm water detention requirements.  

3. City of Mebane public water and sewer lines are accessible for extension to the proposed single-family 

subdivision and apartments.   

4. Street Access is with a public roadway connection to Mebane Oaks Road (signalized with turn lanes), 

a connection to Broadwood Acres Road and Longleaf Pine Place.  Street stubs are proposed to 

adjoining properties.  The roadway network is in conformance with the small area thoroughfare plan 

with the extension of Broadwood Acres Road to Mebane Oaks Road.  Traffic calming is provided with 

a roundabout centrally located within the proposed development. 

5. Sidewalks are proposed on one side of all public streets within the single-family subdivision.  

Broadwood Acres Road extension will have a sidewalk on each side of the road.  A sidewalk will also 

be extended along the property frontage on Mebane Oaks Road. 

6. NCDOT plan approvals, driveway permits, and encroachment agreements are required for the 

proposed improvements at Mebane Oaks Road (S.R. 1007). 

B. Availability of City Water and Sewer  

Regarding the Preliminary Site Plans for Evolve at Mebane Oaks and in accordance with the UDO, this 

memo indicates that I have reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable 

and meets City standards based on the following:   



  

CITY OF MEBANE  106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302   (919) 563 5901   fholt@cityofmebane.com  

WWW . C I T Y OF M E B A N E . COM  

1. Water system – The developer proposes to connect to Mebane’s existing 12-inch water line on 

Mebane Oaks Road and extending a new 12-inch public water line to existing Broadwood Acres Road 

to the north and Longleaf Pine Place to the west with 8-inch public water lines elsewhere in public 

road rights-of-way. Water service to the proposed apartments will be through an 8-inch metered 

water connection with backflow prevention installed at the meter and at each building. The 

anticipated water use is approximately 60,000 gallons per day. The City has adequate water capacity 

available to meet the project’s domestic demand and fire flow requirements. 

2. Sanitary Sewer system – The developer proposes to extend a 12-inch public sewer line from the 

Summit Church property through the site ending near the northern property line (to allow for further 

future extension by the City when it chooses to eliminate the public Wal-Mart sewer pump station). 

Additionally, the developer will extend 8-inch public sewer lines in new road rights-of-way to serve 

the proposed single family lot subdivision and 8-inch private sewer lines to serve the proposed 

apartments. Permitted wastewater flows are approximately 83,500 gallons per day with actual use 

when tributary closer to 50,000 gpd). The City has adequate wastewater capacity available at the 

downstream Southeast Regional Pump Station, Arbor Creek Pump Station and at the WRRF to meet 

this demand. 

3. As a condition of the approval of the apartments, buildings 1 and 2 sewer flow will be allocated in year 

2024 and buildings 3 and 4 in 2025. While this exceeds the requirements of the Accumulated Paper 

Flow Policy staff is agreeable to this developer request due to the number of units in each building not 

fitting the policy and the timing at which the developer intends to construct these buildings (earlier 

tributary flow at a lesser amount than accumulated permitted paper flow at a higher amount over 

several years). 

C. Watershed Overlay District and Phase II Stormwater Requirements  

1. UDO Watershed Overlay District requirements.  

These requirements in the UDO include the Back-Creek Watershed and Graham-Mebane Lake. The 

project is tributary to the Little Haw Creek; a Class V watershed and the Watershed Overlay District 



  

CITY OF MEBANE  106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302   (919) 563 5901   fholt@cityofmebane.com  

WWW . C I T Y OF M E B A N E . COM  

requirements do not apply to this project. This type of watershed classification (Class V) does not have 

density restrictions or built upon restrictions as required for the Graham Mebane Lake watershed.  

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance  

Sec. 5.1 in the UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and 5.1.F requires compliance 

with the Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone ordinance titled the 

Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards in the UDO are general 

standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards.  The SPCO does apply to this project as 

more than one acre is being disturbed.  Built upon areas of more than 24% require engineered 

stormwater controls.  As this project exceeds the 24% threshold, proposed engineered stormwater 

controls are provided on the site plans and include fenced wet ponds (4) with detention being 

provided for up to a 100 yr. design storm event where post construction stormwater runoff peak 

discharges are no more than predevelopment discharge rates for the designed storm event. 

D. Storm Drainage System  

The UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The site plans include a storm drainage 

system layout that indicates certain pipe locations, inlets, and all being directed to the engineered 

stormwater control devices where the stormwater runoff is treated and detained before release to 

downstream properties. The main drainage way crossing will be designed to carry a 100-year storm event 

without over topping the roadway. 

E. Street Access and TIA  

1. A TIA was required for this project with turn lane and signal improvement beings identified at Mebane 

Oaks Road (S.R. 1007).  Street Access is with a public roadway connection to Mebane Oaks Road, a 

connection to Broadwood Acres Road and Longleaf Pine Place.  Street stubs are proposed to adjoining 

properties.  The roadway network is in conformance with the small area thoroughfare plan with the 

extension of Broadwood Acres Road to Mebane Oaks Road.  Traffic calming is provided with a 

roundabout centrally located within the proposed development. 



  

CITY OF MEBANE  106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302   (919) 563 5901   fholt@cityofmebane.com  

WWW . C I T Y OF M E B A N E . COM  

2. Sidewalks are proposed on one side of all public streets within the single-family subdivision.  

Broadwood Acres Road extension will have a sidewalk on each side of the road.  A sidewalk will also 

be extended along the property frontage on Mebane Oaks Road. 

3. NCDOT plan approvals, driveway permits, and encroachment agreements are required by NCDOT for 

the proposed improvements at Mebane Oaks Road (S.R. 1007). 

4. The internal public streets will meet City of Mebane standards 31’ b-b curb and gutter with 26’ travel 

lanes and 5’ wide sidewalks. Broadwood Acres extension will have a minimum of 41’ b-b curb and 

gutter to the roundabout from Mebane Oaks Road and will include a divided median to restrict access.  

The divided median also provides additional traffic calming and a boulevard effect with a grass median 

(maintained by the development) with sidewalks on both sides of the roadway. 

F. Construction Plan Submittal  

The UDO requires final site construction plans to be submitted for TRC review and approval.  









 

VHB Engineering NC, P.C. (C-3075) 
Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com  

 

To: Ashley Ownbey  
Development Director 
City of Mebane 
 

Date: June 8, 2023 

C. N. Edwards Jr., PE 
District Engineer 
NCDOT Highway Division 7 District 1 Project #: 39160.00, Task 18 

 
 

From: Baohong Wan, PhD, PE Re: Mebane Oaks Mixed Use Traffic Impact Analysis  
Mebane, NC 

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) dated April 20, 2023, was prepared by Ramey Kemp Associates (RKA) for the proposed 
Mebane Oaks Mixed Use development in Mebane, North Carolina.  Per request by the City of Mebane, VHB conducted 
an independent review of the Mebane Oaks Mixed Use TIA.  This memo provides a list of critical findings, following by 
an in-depth summary of study process and analysis results of the TIA. 

List of Mitigation Recommendations 
The following items in red font should be considered in addition to mitigation measures identified within the Mebane 
Oaks Mixed Use TIA (in black font): 
› Site Frontage along Mebane Oaks Road 

o Right-of-way (R/W) dedication and streetscape along site frontage of Mebane Oaks Road should be 
provided based on the City of Mebane Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Transportation Plan standards. 

o NCDOT requires sufficient R/W to accommodate required road improvements to mitigate traffic impacts 
attributable to the site based on the TIA.  Additional R/W or infrastructure requirements are subject to local 
regulation and authority by the City of Mebane. 

› Mebane Oaks Road and Site Drive #1 
o Construct Site Drive #1 with one ingress lane and two egress lanes striped as one left-turn lane with at 

least 175 feet of full width storage and one right-turn lane as shown on the site plan. 
o Provide an internal protected stem (IPS) of at least 580 feet for the eastbound approach as shown on the 

site plan to ensure acceptable operations with additional traffic growth and potential addition of the 4th 
leg of the intersection as shown on the Adopted Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan. 

o Provide an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with at least 100 feet of storage with appropriate 
deceleration and taper. 

o Provide an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with at least 100 feet of storage with appropriate 
deceleration and taper. 

o Install a traffic signal based on NCDOT and the City of Mebane’s signal design standards. 
› Mebane Oaks Road Corridor 

o Coordinate with NCDOT to develop a coordination and timing plan for signals along Mebane Oaks Road.  



Ref:  39160.00, Task 18 
June 8, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

General Comments 
Wilson Road Extension 

› The Wilson Road Extension was included in the Synchro analysis files and is shown in the TIA figures; however, 
the TIA report does not project traffic volumes for Wilson Road Extension.  Based on site plan included for 
Tractor Supply, Wilson Road Extension will be made to the existing terminus to serve as a secondary access.  
Trip Distribution 
› Part of site trips to and from Old Hillsborough Road will likely access the site via Sweet Gum Way rather than 

going through to Mebane Oaks Road via the Old Hillsborough Road intersection. 
Synchro Capacity Analysis  
› The NBL movement at the I-40 WB/ I-85 SB Ramps intersection was operating with FYA protected-permitted 

phasing before a second turn lane was provided and phasing was altered to protected only. 
› The intersection of Old Hillsborough Road and Mebane Oaks Road was analyzed with a traffic signal with split 

phasing under the 2023 scenario, although the TIA stated that this intersection is under all-way stop control 
under the existing conditions.   

› The 2023 Existing analysis included some inconsistencies with U-turn movement and right-turn movement 
modeling that did not match field conditions. 

› The 2026 No-Build and 2026 Build scenarios analyze the intersection of Old Hillsborough Road and Mebane 
Oaks Road with a 200 second cycle length. Cycle lengths over 180 seconds are not normally recommended for 
TIA analysis, and the natural cycle length shown in both scenarios is significantly lower.   

› The Lost Time Adjust values at multiple intersections are not set according to the NCDOT guidance (Yellow + 
Red + LTA = 5 seconds).   

Issues with volume calculation and capacity analysis were noted during the TIA review process. Nevertheless, those 
revisions are not expected to materially change anticipated outcomes and required mitigation. 

Summary of TIA Assumptions and Results  

Development Plan 
The proposed Mebane Oaks Mixed Use development will consist of 96 single-family homes, 320 apartment units, and 
1 police station with 35 employees.  Site access will be provided via one (1) full movement driveway along Mebane 
Oaks Road, one (1) connection from Broadwood Acres Road, and one (1) connection via the Manorfield Development.  
The anticipated project build-out year is 2026. 

Study Area and Analysis Scenarios 
The TIA included capacity analyses during the weekday AM and PM peak hours under the following scenarios: 
› 2023 Existing Conditions 
› 2026 No-Build Conditions 
› 2026 Build Conditions 

Through coordination with NCDOT and the City of Mebane, the following intersections were analyzed in the TIA: 
› Mebane Oaks Road and I-40 WB/ I-85 SB Ramps (signalized) 
› Mebane Oaks Road and I-40 EB/ I-85 NB Ramps (signalized) 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 18 
June 8, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

› Mebane Oaks Road and Brundage Lane/ Forest Oaks Lane (signalized) 
› Mebane Oaks Road and Walmart Driveway (signalized) 
› Mebane Oaks Road and Old Hillsborough Road (signalized) 
› Old Hillsborough Road and Sweet Gum Way (unsignalized) 
› Brundage Lane and Broadwood Acres Road (unsignalized) 

Existing and No-Build Analysis Assumptions 
2023 Existing analysis was conducted based on traffic counts collected in February 2023 during weekday AM (7 to 9 
AM) and PM (4 to 6 PM) peak hours while area schools were in session. 
The 2026 No-Build scenario included an annual growth rate of one percent (1%) between the existing year (2023) and 
the future analysis year (2026).  In addition, site trips due to the following adjacent development were identified and 
included in the future year analyses: 
› Deep River 
› Tractor Supply 
› The Meadows 
› Summit Church 
› Meadowstone Townhomes 
› McKays Book Store 

 
Transportation improvements associated with NCDOT TIP I-5711 (I-85/I-40 at Mebane Oaks Road interchange 
improvements and additional through lanes) and SM-5707B (traffic signal and turn lane improvements at Old 
Hillsborough Road/Mebane Oaks Road) were assumed in the future year (2026) analysis.  

Trip Generation & Distribution 
Trip generation potential was determined based on methodology outlined in the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 11th 
Edition.  ITE Land Use Code (LUC) 210 (Single-Family Detached Housing), LUC 221 (Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)), and 
LUC 730 (Government Office Building) were used based on the NCDOT guidance.  Site trips associated with the police 
station were calculated based on employee shifts.  It is expected that 25 employees will work the day shift, and 10 
employees will work the night shift; therefore, trips associated with the 10 night-shift employees were applied to the 
opposite peak hour.  Based on the TIA, the proposed development is expected to generate 2,797 daily site trips with 
247 site trips (78 entering, 169 exiting) occurring in the AM peak hour and 263 site trips (157 entering, 106 exiting) 
occurring in the PM peak hour.  
 
Traffic assignment was conducted based on the following distribution: 
› 35% to/from the east via I-40 EB/ I-85 NB 
› 30% to/from the west via I-40 WB/ I-85 SB 
› 15% to/from the north via Mebane Oaks Road 
› 10% to/from the south via Mebane Oaks Road 
› 10% to/from the west via Old Hillsborough Road 



Ref:  39160.00, Task 18 
June 8, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Intersection Capacity Analysis Results 
Capacity analyses in the TIA were conducted following the NCDOT Congestion Management Capacity Analysis 
Guidelines.  The analysis results and mitigation determinations are summarized below for each individual intersection, 
while LOS and delay are reported and summarized for stop-controlled approaches at unsignalized intersections.   

Mebane Oaks Road and I-40 WB/ I-85 SB Ramps (signalized) 

The TIA indicated that with transportation improvements associated with NCDOT TIP I-5711, this intersection is expected 
to operate at LOS C during both peak hours under the 2026 conditions, with or without the proposed development.  No 
mitigation was recommended within the TIA as the intersection is expected to operate acceptably with no delay or 
queueing issues with the addition of site traffic.   

Mebane Oaks Road and I-40 EB/ I-85 NB Ramps (signalized) 

 
The TIA indicated that with transportation improvements associated with NCDOT TIP I-5711, this intersection is expected 
to operate at LOS C during both peak hours under the 2026 conditions, with or without the proposed development.  No 
mitigation was recommended within the TIA as the intersection is expected to operate acceptably with no delay or 
queueing issues with the addition of site traffic.   

Mebane Oaks Road and Brundage Lane/ Forest Oaks Lane (signalized) 

 
The TIA indicated that with transportation improvements associated with NCDOT TIP I-5711, this intersection is expected 
to operate at LOS B or C during both peak hours under the 2026 conditions, with or without the proposed development.  
No mitigation was recommended within the TIA as the intersection is expected to operate acceptably with no delay or 
queueing issues with the addition of site traffic, although there is slight delay reduction under the Build with 
Improvements scenario, likely due to better traffic progression with signal timing re-optimization along Mebane Oaks 
Road.   

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Mebane Oaks Road and I-40 WB/ I-85 SB 
Ramps

C
(20.3)

C
(27.7)

C
(23.5)

C
(28.9)

C
(24.9)

C
(32.1)

C
(25.0)

C
(31.2)

Westbound D-46.5 D-46.5 D-51.3 D-51.0 D-50.4 E-55.0 D-50.3 D-49.9
Northbound B-13.9 B-18.2 B-15.1 B-15.7 B-17.6 B-19.3 B-17.1 B-17.6
Southbound B-15.4 C-24.5 B-18.9 C-26.5 C-20.3 C-28.2 C-21.0 C-31.4

2026 Build with 
Improvements

1

ID Intersection and Approach 2023 Existing 2026 No-Build 2026 Build

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Mebane Oaks Road and I-40 EB/ I-85 NB 
Ramps

C
(27.8)

C
(31.4)

C
(26.7)

C
(21.9)

C
(27.0)

C
(20.7)

C
(23.4)

C
(20.2)

Eastbound D-50.7 D-47.3 D-41.8 D-44.3 D-41.8 D-44.1 D-42.8 D-44.4
Northbound B-13.3 B-19.5 C-23.1 B-15.4 C-24.9 B-13.0 B-15.4 B-11.5
Southbound C-21.9 C-34.1 B-16.8 B-15.6 B-15.8 B-14.9 B-16.2 B-15.0

2026 Build with 
ImprovementsID

2

2026 BuildIntersection and Approach 2023 Existing 2026 No-Build

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Mebane Oaks Road and Brundage Lane/ 
Forest Oaks Lane

C
(31.8)

C
(30.3)

C
(20.0)

B
(19.1)

C
(20.3)

C
(20.4)

C
(20.0)

B
(20.0)

Eastbound E-68.3 E-67.6 D-52.6 D-49.2 D-53.3 D-49.2 D-53.5 D-49.2
Westbound F-80.9 F-82.5 D-50.6 D-47.1 D-50.2 D-48.1 D-50.8 D-48.1
Northbound B-16.6 B-17.3 B-14.4 B-14.1 B-15.0 B-17.3 B-15.6 B-16.4
Southbound C-20.5 C-22.7 A-7.7 B-10.8 A-9.1 B-11.9 A-7.7 B-11.6

2026 Build with 
Improvements2023 Existing 2026 No-Build 2026 Build

ID Intersection and Approach

3



Ref:  39160.00, Task 18 
June 8, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Mebane Oaks Road and Walmart Drive (signalized) 

 
The TIA indicated that with transportation improvements associated with NCDOT TIP I-5711, this intersection is expected 
to operate at LOS B or C during both peak hours under the 2026 conditions, with or without the proposed development.  
No mitigation was recommended within the TIA as the intersection is expected to operate acceptably with no delay or 
queueing issues with the addition of site traffic, although there is slight delay changes under the Build with 
Improvements scenario, likely due to signal timing re-optimization along Mebane Oaks Road.   

Mebane Oaks Road and Old Hillsborough Road (signalized) 

 
The TIA indicated that with transportation improvements associated with SM-5707B, this intersection is expected to 
operate at LOS C during both peak hours under the 2026 conditions, with or without the proposed development.  The 
intersection is projected to operate at LOS F during both peak hours under the existing conditions, likely due to the use 
of split phasing along Old Hillsborough Road in the Synchro analysis.  No mitigation was recommended within the TIA 
as the intersection is expected to operate acceptably with no delay or queueing issues with the addition of site traffic.   

Old Hillsborough Road and Sweet Gum Way (unsignalized) 

 
The existing stop-controlled approach is expected to operate at LOS C or better during both peak hours under 2026 
Build conditions.  No mitigation was recommended within the TIA as the intersection is expected to operate acceptably 
with no delay or queueing issues with the addition of site traffic.   
 
Although part of site trips to and from Old Hillsborough Road will likely access the site via Sweet Gum Way rather than 
going through to Mebane Oaks Road via the Old Hillsborough Road intersection, the recommendations will likely remain 
the same as a dedicated left-turn lane along eastbound Old Hillsborough Road is already present at this intersection. 

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Mebane Oaks Road and Walmart 
Driveway

A
(9.6)

C
(20.9)

B
(13.8)

C
(25.4)

B
(13.2)

C
(23.1)

A
(8.7)

C
(24.3)

Eastbound D-44.0 D-41.5 D-51.1 D-50.6 D-51.1 D-53.8 E-55.6 D-52.9
Westbound --- --- D-39.0 D-39.1 D-39.0 D-47.0 --- D-40.0
Northbound A-2.3 A-5.0 A-8.5 B-12.2 A-8.9 A-9.1 A-2.8 B-10.9
Southbound A-6.9 B-14.1 A-9.0 B-15.6 A-9.0 B-12.7 A-5.1 B-15.2

2026 Build with 
Improvements2026 Build2026 No-Build

ID
2023 Existing

4

Intersection and Approach

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Mebane Oaks Road and Old Hillsborough 
Road

F
(211.3)

F
(169.2)

C
(22.6)

C
(22.9)

C
(23.9)

C
(24.6)

C
(24.4)

C
(20.9)

Eastbound F-636.2 F-481.4 B-14.4 B-16.1 B-14.8 B-16.8 D-39.6 C-33.0
Westbound C-23.3 C-24.0 C-32.6 C-34.7 D-35.1 D-38.4 D-49.8 D-48.9
Northbound D-39.0 F-114.4 C-32.4 D-35.1 C-34.5 D-38.0 B-16.9 C-22.2
Southbound C-22.6 E-66.9 B-15.3 B-14.7 B-16.7 B-15.8 A-5.0 A-3.6

2026 Build with 
Improvements2023 Existing

5

2026 Build
ID

2026 No-BuildIntersection and Approach

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Old Hillsborough Road and Sweet Gum 
Way N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Southbound B-12.2 B-13.7 B-13.6 C-15.5 B-13.9 C-15.9 B-13.9 C-15.9

2026 Build with 
Improvements2026 Build

6

ID Intersection and Approach 2023 Existing 2026 No-Build



Ref:  39160.00, Task 18 
June 8, 2023 
Page 6 
 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
Venture I, 940 Main Campus Drive, Suite 500, Raleigh, North Carolina 27606 
P  919.829.0328 F  919.833.0034 www.vhb.com 

 

Brundage Lane and Broadwood Acres Road (unsignalized) 

 
The existing stop-controlled approach is expected to operate at LOS A during both peak hours under 2026 Build 
conditions.  No mitigation was recommended within the TIA as the intersection is expected to operate acceptably with 
no delay or queueing issues with the addition of site traffic.   

Mebane Oaks Road and Site Drive #1 (future unsignalized) 

 
The proposed driveway connection is expected to operate at LOS D during the AM peak hour and LOS E during the PM 
peak hour under 2026 Build conditions.  The TIA recommended the following improvements with the construction of 
the site driveway along Mebane Oaks Road: 
› Construct Site Drive #1 with one ingress lane and two egress lanes striped as one left-turn lane and one right-

turn lane with 100 feet of full width storage. 
› Provide an exclusive northbound left-turn lane with at least 100 feet of storage with appropriate deceleration 

and taper. 
› Provide an exclusive southbound right-turn lane with at least 100 feet of storage with appropriate deceleration 

and taper. 
› Monitor the intersection in the future as the development is constructed to determine if a traffic signal is 

warranted at the intersection.  A traffic signal must be approved by NCDOT for installation. 
› Provide an internal protected stem (IPS) of at least 150 feet for the eastbound approach. 

Signal warrant analysis indicates that a traffic signal is likely warranted at this intersection (meeting both Eight-Hour and 
Four-Hour Warrants, not meeting Peak Hour Warrant), and shifting Site Drive #1 to the south at the property boundary 
may be considered to achieve better intersection spacing.  Nevertheless, signalization at this location is consistent with 
the City of Mebane’s long-term vision through Mebane Oaks Road Small Area Plan, and installation of a new traffic 
signal at the planned location has been approved by NCDOT during the preliminary TIA review process. 
 
In addition to improvements associated with the new driveway connection, the TIA recommended to coordinate with 
NCDOT to develop a coordination and timing plan for the traffic signals along Mebane Oaks Road.  

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Brundage Lane and Broadwood Acres 
Road N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Northbound A-8.5 A-8.5 A-8.5 A-8.5 A-8.5 A-8.5 A-8.5 A-8.5

2026 Build with 
Improvements2026 Build

7

ID Intersection and Approach 2023 Existing 2026 No-Build

AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM

Mebane Oaks Road and Site Drive #1 - - - - N/A N/A B
(11.8)

A
(7.4)

Eastbound --- --- --- --- D-31.3 E-39.0 D-53.9 D-54.7
Northbound --- --- --- --- --- --- A-3.1 A-2.1
Southbound --- --- --- --- --- --- A-4.1 A-4.8

2026 Build with 
Improvements2026 Build

8

ID Intersection and Approach 2023 Existing 2026 No-Build


	July 2023 Planning Board Agenda
	June 2023 PB Minutes
	0. Summary Sheet - General Rezoning - Terry Hedgspeth
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	1. Priliminary Slides
	Slide Number 10
	600 E Brown St.�Conditional Rezoning Request
	600 E Brown St�Conditional Rezoning Request
	Slide Number 13
	600 E Brown St.�Conditional Rezoning Request
	600 E Brown St�Conditional Zoning Request

	2. Zoning Amendment Application - 600 E Brown St
	3. Zoning Map - 600 E Brown St
	4. Site Plan - 600 E Brown St
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	5. Planning Project Report - 600 E Brown St
	Project name & applicant Page 1
	Zoning Report Page 2
	Land Use Report page 4
	Utilities Report page 6
	Staff ZONING REQUEST Recommendation page 6
	ZONING REPORT
	LAND USE REPORT
	UTILITIES REPORT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION

	0. Summary Sheet - Evolve
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Application Brief
	See Planning Project Report for more details.
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	1. Preliminary Slides - Evolve
	Evolve at Mebane Oaks�Conditional Rezoning Request
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9

	2. Zoning Amendment Application - Evolve
	3. Zoning Map - Evolve
	4. Site Plan - Evolve
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	19-48-BOUNDARY 24x36

	5. Planning Project Report - Evolve
	Project name & applicant Page 1
	Zoning Report Page 2
	Land Use Report page 4
	Utilities Report page 7
	Staff ZONING REQUEST Recommendation page 9
	ZONING REPORT
	LAND USE REPORT
	UTILITIES REPORT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION

	6. Preliminary water and sewer approval - Evolve
	7. Technical Memo - Evolve
	8a. Mebane Oaks Mixed Use TIA NCDOT Review FINAL
	8b. Mebane Oaks Mixed Use TIA VHB Review - Final 2023.06.08



